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PART 1-FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Financial Statements

FIRST DEFIANCE FINANCIAL CORP.

Consolidated Condensed Statements of Financial Condition
(UNAUDITED)

(Amounts in Thousands)
 

   
March 31,

2009   
December 31,

2008
   (In Thousands)
Assets     
Cash and cash equivalents:     

Cash and amounts due from depository institutions   $ 27,523  $ 40,980
Interest-bearing deposits    84,050   5,172

        

   111,573   46,152
Securities:     

Available-for-sale, carried at fair value    122,633   117,575
Held-to-maturity, carried at amortized cost (fair value $887 and $917 at March 31, 2009 and

December 31, 2008, respectively)    853   886
        

   123,486   118,461
Loans held for sale    23,588   10,960
Loans receivable, net of allowance of $25,694 at March 31, 2009 and $24,592 at December 31, 2008    1,560,203   1,592,643
Accrued interest receivable    8,004   7,293
Federal Home Loan Bank stock    21,376   21,376
Bank owned life insurance    28,806   28,747
Premises and equipment    47,360   47,756
Real estate and other assets held for sale    7,839   7,000
Goodwill    56,585   56,585
Core deposit and other intangibles    7,953   8,344
Mortgage servicing rights    6,957   6,611
Deferred taxes    910   336
Other assets    6,022   5,136

        

Total assets   $2,010,662  $1,957,400
        

(continued)
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FIRST DEFIANCE FINANCIAL CORP.

Consolidated Condensed Statements of Financial Condition
(UNAUDITED)

(Amounts in Thousands, except per share data)
 

   
March 31,

2009   
December 31,

2008  
   (In Thousands)  
Liabilities and stockholders’ equity    
Liabilities:    

Deposits   $1,540,235  $1,469,912 
Advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank    146,957   156,067 
Securities sold under repurchase agreements    38,884   49,454 
Subordinated debentures    36,083   36,083 
Advance payments by borrowers    474   652 
Other liabilities    17,421   16,073 

         

Total liabilities    1,780,054   1,728,241 

Stockholders’ equity:    
Preferred stock, $.01 par value per share: 37,000 shares authorized and issued with a liquidation

preference of $1,000 per share, net of discount    36,172   36,133 
Preferred stock, no par value per share:    

5,000,000 shares authorized; no shares issued    —     —   
Common stock, $.01 par value per share:    

20,000,000 shares authorized; 12,739,496 and 12,739,496 shares issued and 8,117,120 and
8,117,120 shares outstanding, respectively    127   127 

Common stock warrant    878   878 
Additional paid-in capital    140,510   140,449 
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax of ($1,122) and ($1,025),

respectively    (2,084)  (1,904)
Retained earnings    127,643   126,114 
Treasury stock, at cost, 4,622,376 and 4,622,376 shares respectively    (72,638)  (72,638)

         

Total stockholders’ equity    230,608   229,159 
         

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity   $2,010,662  $1,957,400 
    

 
   

 

See accompanying notes
 

3

Quarterly Report http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/946647/000119312509106807/...

4 of 49 5/11/2009 2:27 PM



FIRST DEFIANCE FINANCIAL CORP.

Consolidated Condensed Statements of Income
(UNAUDITED)

(Amounts in Thousands, except per share data)
 

   
Three Months Ended

March 31,  
   2009   2008  
Interest Income    

Loans   $23,377  $22,812 
Investment securities:    

Taxable    1,083   1,149 
Non-taxable    409   336 

Interest-bearing deposits    14   99 
FHLB stock dividends    239   243 

         

Total interest income    25,122   24,639 
Interest Expense    

Deposits    7,183   8,670 
FHLB advances and other    1,319   1,655 
Subordinated debentures    426   529 
Notes payable    157   194 

         

Total interest expense    9,085   11,048 
         

Net interest income    16,037   13,591 
Provision for loan losses    2,746   1,058 

         

Net interest income after provision for loan losses    13,291   12,533 
Non-interest Income    

Service fees and other charges    3,086   2,623 
Insurance and investment sales commission income    1,523   1,936 
Mortgage banking income    2,714   1,114 
Gain on sale of non-mortgage loans    55   35 
Loss on sale or write-down of securities    —     (81)
Impairment on available-for-sale securities (includes total losses of $846 for 2009, net of $174

recognized in other comprehensive income, pre-tax)    (672)  —   
Trust income    102   111 
Income from Bank Owned Life Insurance    59   273 
Other non-interest income    (63)  4 

         

Total non-interest income    6,804   6,015 
Non-interest Expense    

Compensation and benefits    7,365   7,124 
Occupancy    2,117   1,669 
FDIC insurance premium    567   35 
State franchise tax    501   494 
Data processing    1,054   1,029 
Acquisition related charges    —     750 
Amortization of intangibles    391   191 
Other non-interest expense    3,001   2,184 

         

Total non-interest expense    14,996   13,476 
         

Income before income taxes    5,099   5,072 
Federal income taxes    1,691   1,653 

         

Net Income   $ 3,408  $ 3,419 
    

 
   

 

Dividends accrued on preferred shares   $ (463) $ —   
Accretion on preferred shares   $ (38) $ —   

         

Net income applicable to common shares   $ 2,907  $ 3,419 
    

 
   

 

Earnings per common share (Note 8)    
Basic   $ 0.36  $ 0.48 
Diluted   $ 0.36  $ 0.47 

Dividends declared per share (Note 7)   $ 0.17  $ 0.26 
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Average shares outstanding (Note 8)    
Basic    8,117   7,195 
Diluted    8,117   7,241 

See accompanying notes
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FIRST DEFIANCE FINANCIAL CORP.

Consolidated Condensed Statement of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity
(UNAUDITED)

(Amounts in Thousands)
 

   
Three Months Ended

March 31,  
   2009   2008  
Balance at beginning of period   $229,159  $165,954 

Comprehensive income:    
Net income    3,408   3,419 
Other comprehensive income (loss) (Note 3)    (180)  (331)

         

Total comprehensive income    3,228   3,088 
ESOP shares released    —     552 
Stock option expense    64   54 
Tax benefit of employee plans    —     55 
Shares issued under stock option plans    —     556 
Treasury shares repurchased    —     (462)
Acquisition of Pavilion Bancorp    —     27,139 
Preferred stock dividends accrued    (463)  —   
Common cash dividends declared (Note 7)    (1,380)  (2,101)

         

Balance at end of period   $230,608  $194,835 
    

 
   

 

See Accompanying Notes
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FIRST DEFIANCE FINANCIAL CORP.

Consolidated Condensed Statements of Cash Flows
(UNAUDITED)

(Amounts in Thousands)
 

   
Three Months Ended

March 31,  
   2009   2008  
Operating Activities    
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities   $ (4,963) $ 2,360 

Investing Activities    
Proceeds from maturities of held-to-maturity securities    33   36 
Proceeds from maturities of available-for-sale securities    3,300   8,394 
Proceeds from sale of real estate and other assets held for sale    593   235 
Net cash paid for in acquisition of Pavilion Bancorp, Inc.    —     (23,585)
Proceeds from sale of non-mortgage loans    1,764   2,750 
Purchases of available-for-sale securities    (9,260)  (11,024)
Purchases of office properties and equipment    (557)  (1,628)
Net (increase) decrease in loans receivable    25,720   (13,720)

         

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities    21,593   (38,542)

Financing Activities    
Net increase (decrease) in deposits and advance payments by borrowers    70,212   (13,453)
Repayment of Federal Home Loan Bank long-term advances    (10)  (222)
Net decrease in Federal Home Loan Bank short-term advances    (9,100)  (500)
Proceeds from Federal Home Loan Bank long-term advances    —     19,000 
Decrease in securities sold under repurchase agreements    (10,570)  (940)
Net increase in short-term borrowings    —     10,000 
Purchase of common stock for treasury    —     (462)
Cash dividends paid on common stock    (1,380)  (1,826)
Cash dividends paid on preferred stock    (361)  —   
Proceeds from exercise of stock options    —     555 
Excess tax benefits from exercise of stock options    —     55 

         

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities    48,791   12,207 
         

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents    65,421   (23,975)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period    46,152   65,553 

         

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period   $111,573  $ 41,578 
    

 
   

 

Supplemental cash flow information:    
Interest paid   $ 8,994  $ 10,817 

    
 

   
 

Income taxes paid   $ 1,500  $ 1,230 
    

 
   

 

Transfers from loans to other real estate owned and other assets held for sale   $ 1,734  $ 19 
    

 
   

 

See accompanying notes.
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FIRST DEFIANCE FINANCIAL CORP.

Notes to Consolidated Condensed Financial Statements
(Unaudited at March 31, 2009 and 2008)

1. Basis of Presentation
First Defiance Financial Corp. (“First Defiance” or the “Company”) is a unitary thrift holding company that conducts business through
its two wholly owned subsidiaries, First Federal Bank of the Midwest (“First Federal”) and First Insurance & Investments (“First
Insurance”). All significant intercompany transactions and balances are eliminated in consolidation.

First Federal is primarily engaged in attracting deposits from the general public through its offices and using those and other available
sources of funds to originate loans primarily in the counties in which its offices are located. First Federal’s traditional  banking
activities include originating and servicing residential, commercial and consumer loans and providing a broad range of depository,
trust and wealth management services. First Insurance & Investments is an insurance agency that does business in the Defiance and
Bowling Green, Ohio areas offering property and casualty, and group health, and life insurance products.

The consolidated condensed statement of financial  condition at December 31, 2008 has been derived from the audited financial
statements at that date, which were included in First Defiance’s Annual Report on Form 10-K.

The accompanying consolidated condensed financial statements as of March 31, 2009 and for the three month period ended March 31,
2009 and 2008 have been prepared by First Defiance without audit and do not include information or footnotes necessary for the
complete presentation of financial condition, results of operations, and cash flows in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States. These consolidated condensed financial statements should be read in conjunction with the financial
statements and notes thereto included in First Defiance’s 2008 Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008.
However, in the opinion of management, all adjustments, consisting of only normal recurring items, necessary for the fair presentation
of the  financial  statements  have  been made.  The  results  for  the  three  month period ended March 31,  2009 are  not necessarily
indicative of the results that may be expected for the entire year.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

Use of Estimates
The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and
accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Significant areas where First Defiance uses estimates are the
valuation of certain investment securities, the determination of the allowance for loan losses, the valuation of mortgage servicing
rights and goodwill, the determination of unrecognized income tax benefits, and the determination of post-retirement benefits.
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Earnings Per Common Share
Basic earnings per common share is net income applicable to common shares divided by the weighted average number of shares of
common stock outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per common share include the dilutive effect of additional potential
common shares issuable under stock options, warrants and stock grants. Unreleased shares held by the Company’s Employee Stock
Ownership Plan are  not included in average shares  for  purposes  of calculating earnings  per  share.  As shares  are  released for
allocation, they are included in the average shares outstanding.

Comprehensive Income
Comprehensive income consists of net income and other comprehensive income. Other comprehensive income includes unrealized
gains and losses on available for sale investment securities and the net unrecognized actuarial losses and unrecognized prior service
costs  associated with the  Company’s  Defined Benefit Postretirement Medical  Plan.  All  items  included in other  comprehensive
income are reported net of tax.

Investment Securities
Management determines the appropriate classification of debt securities at the time of purchase and evaluates such designation as of
each balance sheet date. Debt securities are classified as held-to-maturity when First Defiance has the positive intent and ability to
hold the securities to maturity and are reported at cost, adjusted for premiums and discounts that are recognized in interest income
using the interest method over the period to maturity.

Debt securities  not  classified  as  held-to-maturity and  equity securities  are  classified  as  available-for-sale.  Available-for-sale
securities are stated at fair value, with the unrealized gains and losses, net of tax, reported in other comprehensive income until
realized. Realized gains and losses are included in gains (losses) on securities. Realized gains and losses on securities sold are
recognized on the trade date based on the specific identification method.

Interest income includes amortization of purchase premiums and discounts. Securities with unrealized losses are reviewed quarterly
to determine if impairment is other-than-temporary. In performing this review management considers the length of time and extent that
fair value has been less than cost, the financial condition of the issuer, the impact of changes in market interest rates on market value
and the Company’s ability and intent to hold the security for a period sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in fair value. If
the fair value of a security is less than amortized cost and the impairment is determined to be other-than-temporary, it is reflected in
earnings as realized losses to the extent the impairment is related to credit losses. The amount of impairment related to other factors is
recognized in other comprehensive income.
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Allowance for Loan Losses
The allowance for loan losses is maintained at a level believed adequate by management to absorb probable incurred losses in the
loan portfolio and is based on the size and current risk characteristics of the loan portfolio, an assessment of individual problem
loans, actual  loss experience, current economic events  in specific industries  and geographical  areas, and other  pertinent factors
including general economic conditions. Determination of the allowance is inherently subjective as it requires significant estimates,
including the amounts and timing of expected future cash flows on impaired loans, estimated losses on pools of homogeneous loans
based on historical loss experience and consideration of economic trends, all of which may be susceptible to significant change.
Allocations of the allowance may be made for specific loans, but the entire allowance is available for any loan that, in management’s
judgment, should be charged off.

Loan losses are charged off against the allowance when in management’s estimation it is unlikely that the loan will be collected,
while recoveries of amounts previously charged off are credited to the allowance. A provision for loan loss is charged to operations
based on management’s periodic evaluation of the factors previously mentioned, as well as other pertinent factors in order to maintain
the allowance for loan losses at the level deemed adequate by management. The determination of whether a loan is considered past
due or delinquent is based on the contractual payment terms.

A loan is  impaired when full  payment under  the loan terms is  not expected.  Commercial  and commercial  real  estate loans are
individually evaluated for impairment. If a loan is impaired, a portion of the allowance is allocated so that the loan is reported, net, at
the present value of estimated future cash flows using the loan’s existing rate or at the fair value of collateral if repayment is expected
solely from the collateral. Large groups of smaller balance homogeneous loans, such as consumer and residential real estate loans,
are collectively evaluated for impairment, and accordingly, they are not separately identified for impairment disclosures.

Goodwill and Other Intangibles
Goodwill results from business acquisitions and represents the purchase price over the fair value of acquired tangible assets and
liabilities and identifiable intangible assets. Goodwill is assessed annually for impairment and any such impairment is recognized in
the period identified. Identified purchased intangibles, which consist of core deposit intangibles, customer relationship intangibles
and non-compete agreements, are recorded at cost or estimated fair value and amortized over their estimated lives, which range from
five years for non-compete agreements to 10 to 20 years for core deposit and customer relationship intangibles.

Stock Compensation Plans
Compensation cost is recognized for stock options issued to employees and directors, based on the fair value of these awards at the
date of grant. A Black-Scholes model is utilized to estimate the fair value of stock options. Compensation cost is recognized over the
required service period, generally defined as the vesting period. For awards with graded vesting, compensation cost is recognized on
a straight-line basis over the requisite service period for the entire award.
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments
Fair values of financial instruments are estimated using relevant market information and other assumptions, as more fully disclosed in
a separate note. Fair value estimates involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgment regarding interest rates, credit risk,
prepayments, and other factors, especially in the absence of broad markets for particular items. Changes in assumptions or in market
conditions could significantly affect the estimates.

Mortgage Banking Derivatives
Commitments to fund mortgage loans (interest rate locks) to be sold in the secondary market and forward commitments for the future
delivery of these mortgage loans are accounted for as derivatives not qualifying for hedge accounting. Fair values of these mortgage
derivatives are estimated based on changes in mortgage interest rates from the date of commitments. Changes in the fair values of
these derivatives are included in mortgage banking income.

Operating Segments
Management considers  the  following factors  in determining the need to disclose separate  operating segments:  1)  The nature  of
products and services, which are all  financial in nature. 2) the type and class of customer for the products and services; in First
Defiance’s case retail customers for retail bank and insurance products and commercial customers for commercial loan, deposit, life,
health and property and casualty insurance needs. 3) The methods used to distribute products or provide services; such services are
delivered  through banking and  insurance  offices  and  through bank and  insurance  customer  contact  representatives.  Retail  and
commercial customers are frequently targets for both banking and insurance products. 4) The nature of the regulatory environment;
both banking and insurance entities are subject to various regulatory bodies and a number of specific regulations.

Quantitative thresholds of SFAS 131, Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information are monitored. For the
quarter ended March 31, 2009, the reported revenue for First Insurance was 6.4% of total revenue for First Defiance. Total revenue
includes net interest income (before provision for loan losses) plus non-interest income. Net income for First Insurance for the quarter
ended March 31, 2009 was 8.9% of consolidated net income. Total assets of First Insurance at March 31, 2009 were 0.4% of total
assets.  First Insurance does  not meet any of the  quantitative  thresholds  of SFAS 131.  Accordingly,  all  of the  financial  service
operations are considered by management to be aggregated in one reportable segment.

Income Taxes
The Company’s effective tax rate differs from the statutory 35% federal tax rate primarily because of the volatility of income tax
expense attributable to the change in income before income taxes and the impact of the Company’s tax exempt income on obligations
of state and political subdivisions. In accordance with Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 28, income tax expense should be
recorded using the Company’s best estimate of the effective tax rate for a full year. With the other-than-temporary impairment charge
recorded for the Company’s trust preferred collateralized debt obligations and the higher than anticipated provisions for loan losses
being necessary, the Company’s pre-tax income is lower than expected. As a result, the Company’s tax exempt income has had a
larger impact than originally estimated and resulted in a lower expected tax rate for the first quarter ended March 31, 2009.
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Reclassifications
Some items in the prior financial statements were reclassified to conform to the current presentation.

New Accounting Standards

Statements of Financial Accounting Standards
SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinations (Revised 2007).” SFAS 141R replaces SFAS 141, “Business Combinations,” and applies to
all  transactions and other events in which one entity obtains control  over one or more other businesses. SFAS 141R requires an
acquirer, upon initially obtaining control of another entity, to recognize the assets, liabilities and any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree at fair value as of the acquisition date. Contingent consideration is required to be recognized and measured at fair value on
the date of acquisition rather than at a later date when the amount of that consideration may be determinable beyond a reasonable
doubt. This fair value approach replaces the cost-allocation process required under SFAS 141 whereby the cost of an acquisition was
allocated to the individual assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their estimated fair value. SFAS 141R requires acquirers
to expense acquisition-related costs as incurred rather than allocating such costs to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed, as was
previously the case under SFAS 141. Under SFAS 141R, the requirements of SFAS 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit
or Disposal Activities,” would have to be met in order to accrue for a restructuring plan in purchase accounting. Pre-acquisition
contingencies are to be recognized at fair value, unless it is a non-contractual contingency that is not likely to materialize, in which
case,  nothing should be recognized in purchase accounting and, instead,  that contingency would be subject to the probable  and
estimable recognition criteria of SFAS 5, “Accounting for Contingencies.” SFAS 141R is not expected to have a significant impact
on the Company’s accounting for business combinations closing on or after January 1, 2009.

SFAS  No. 160,  “Noncontrolling  Interest  in  Consolidated  Financial  Statements,  an  amendment  of  ARB  Statement  No. 51.”
SFAS 160 amends Accounting Research Bulletin (ARB) No. 51, “Consolidated Financial Statements,” to establish accounting and
reporting standards for the non-controlling interest in a subsidiary and for the deconsolidation of a subsidiary. SFAS 160 clarifies that
a  non-controlling interest in a  subsidiary,  which is  sometimes  referred  to  as  minority interest,  is  an ownership  interest in the
consolidated  entity that  should  be  reported  as  a  component  of  equity in the  consolidated  financial  statements.  Among other
requirements, SFAS 160 requires consolidated net income to be reported at amounts that include the amounts attributable to both the
parent and the non-controlling interest. It also requires disclosure, on the face of the consolidated income statement, of the amounts of
consolidated net income attributable to the parent and to the non-controlling interest. SFAS 160 was effective for the Company on
January 1, 2009 and did not have a significant impact on the Company’s financial statements.
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SFAS No. 161, “Disclosures About Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, an Amendment of FASB Statement No. 133.”
SFAS 161 amends SFAS 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” to amend and expand the disclosure
requirements of SFAS 133 to provide greater transparency about (i) how and why an entity uses derivative instruments, (ii) how
derivative instruments  and related hedge items are  accounted for  under  SFAS 133 and its  related interpretations,  and (iii) how
derivative instruments and related hedged items affect an entity’s financial position, results of operations and cash flows. To meet
those  objectives,  SFAS 161  requires  qualitative  disclosures  about  objectives  and  strategies  for  using derivatives,  quantitative
disclosures  about  fair  value  amounts  of  gains  and  losses  on derivative  instruments  and  disclosures  about  credit-risk-related
contingent features in derivative agreements. See Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements for the impact on the Company of
adopting SFAS 161.

Financial Accounting Standards Board Staff Positions and Interpretations
FSP SFAS 157-4, “Determining Fair Value When the Volume and Level of Activity for the Asset or Liability Have Significantly
Decreased and Identifying Transactions That Are Not Orderly.” FSP SFAS 157-4 affirms that the objective of fair value when the
market for an asset is not active is the price that would be received to sell  the asset in an orderly transaction, and clarifies and
includes additional factors for determining whether there has been a significant decrease in market activity for an asset when the
market for that asset is not active. FSP SFAS 157-4 requires an entity to base its conclusion about whether a transaction was not
orderly on the weight of the evidence. FSP SFAS 157-4 also amended SFAS 157, “Fair Value Measurements,” to expand certain
disclosure requirements. FSP SFAS 157-4 is effective for the Company for interim and annual reporting periods ending after June 15,
2009, applied prospectively; early adoption is permitted for periods ending after March 15, 2009. The Company elected to early
adopt FSP SFAS 157-4 and it did not have a significant impact on the Company’s financial statements.

FSP SFAS 115-2 and SFAS 124-2, “Recognition and Presentation of Other-Than-Temporary Impairments.” FSP SFAS 115-2 and
SFAS 124-2 (i) changes existing guidance for  determining whether  an impairment is  other  than temporary to debt securities  and
(ii) replaces the existing requirement that the entity’s management assert it has both the intent and ability to hold an impaired security
until recovery with a requirement that management assert: (a) it does not have the intent to sell the security; and (b) it is more likely
than not it will not have to sell the security before recovery of its cost basis. Under FSP SFAS 115-2 and SFAS 124-2, declines in the
fair  value of held-to-maturity and available-for-sale securities  below their  cost that are deemed to be other  than temporary are
reflected in earnings as realized losses to the extent the impairment is related to credit losses. The amount of the impairment related to
other factors is recognized in other comprehensive income. FSP SFAS 115-2 and SFAS 124-2 is effective for the Company for
interim and annual reporting periods ending after June 15, 2009; early adoption is permitted for periods ending after March 15, 2009.
See Note 9 to the consolidated financial statements for the impact on the Company of adopting FSP No. 115-2 and FAS 124-2.

FSP SFAS 107-1 and APB 28-1, “Interim Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments.” FSP SFAS 107-1 and APB
28-1 amends SFAS 107, “Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments,” to require an entity to provide disclosures about
fair value of
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financial  instruments  in interim financial  information and amends  Accounting Principles  Board (APB) Opinion No. 28,  “Interim
Financial  Reporting,”  to  require  those  disclosures  in  summarized  financial  information at  interim reporting periods.  Under
FSP SFAS 107-1 and APB 28-1, a publicly traded company shall include disclosures about the fair value of its financial instruments
whenever it issues summarized financial information for interim reporting periods. In addition, entities must disclose, in the body or
in the accompanying notes of its summarized financial information for interim reporting periods and in its financial statements for
annual  reporting periods,  the  fair  value  of all  financial  instruments  for  which it is  practicable  to  estimate  that value,  whether
recognized or not recognized in the statement of financial position, as required by SFAS 107. FSP SFAS 107-1 and APB 28-1 is
effective for the Company for interim and annual reporting periods ending after June 15, 2009; early adoption is permitted for periods
ending after March 15, 2009. The Company elected to early adopt FSP SFAS 107-1 and APB 28-1 and the new interim disclosures
are included in the Company’s interim financial statements as of March 31, 2009.

3. Comprehensive Income
Comprehensive income consists of net income and other  comprehensive income (“OCI”). Other  comprehensive income includes
unrealized gains and losses on securities available-for-sale and the net unrecognized actuarial losses and unrecognized prior services
costs associated with the Company’s Defined Benefit Postretirement Medical Plan. All items reported in other comprehensive income
are reported net of tax. Following is a summary of other comprehensive income for the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008:
 

   
Three Months

Ended March 31,  
   2009   2008  
   (In thousands)  
Net income   $3,408  $3,419 
Change in securities available-for-sale:    

Other-than-temporary impairment on available-for-sale securities    (846)  —   
Other-than-temporary impairment on available-for-sale securities associated with credit

losses realized in income    672   —   
         

Other-than-temporary impairment on available-for-sale securities recorded in OCI    (174)  —   

Unrealized holding gains (losses) on available-for-sale securities arising during the period    (103)  (588)
Reclassification adjustment for (gains) losses realized in income    —     81 

         

Net unrealized gains (losses)    (103)  (507)
Income tax effect    97   176 

         

Total other comprehensive loss    (180)  (331)
         

Comprehensive income   $3,228  $3,088 
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The following table summarizes the changes within each classification of accumulated comprehensive income for the three months
ended March 31, 2009 and 2008:
 

   

Unrealized gains
(losses) on available

for sale securities   
Postretirement

Benefit   

Accumulated
other

comprehensive
income (loss)  

   (In thousands)  
Balance at December 31, 2008   $ (1,100) $ (804) $ (1,904)

Other comprehensive income (loss)    (852)  —     (852)
Other-than-temporary impairment on available-for-sale

securities realized in income relating to credit loss    672   —     672 
             

Balance at March 31, 2009   $ (1,280) $ (804) $ (2,084)
    

 
   

 
   

 

   

Unrealized gains
(losses) on available

for sale securities   
Postretirement

Benefit   

Accumulated
other

comprehensive
income (loss)  

   (In thousands)  
Balance at December 31, 2007   $ 364  $ (779) $ (415)

Other comprehensive income (loss)    (431)  —     (431)
Other-than-temporary impairment on available-for-sale

securities realized in income relating to credit loss    100   —     100 
             

Balance at March 31, 2008   $ 33  $ (779) $ (746)
    

 
   

 
   

 

4. Fair Value
SFAS 157 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants. A fair value measurement assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability occurs in
the principal market for the asset or liability or, in the absence of a principal market, the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability. The price in the principal (or most advantageous) market used to measure the fair value of the asset or liability shall not be
adjusted for transaction costs. An orderly transaction is a transaction that assumes exposure to the market for a period prior to the
measurement date to allow for marketing activities that are usual and customary for transactions involving such assets and liabilities;
it  is  not  a  forced  transaction.  Market  participants  are  buyers  and  sellers  in  the  principal  market  that  are  (i) independent,
(ii) knowledgeable, (iii) able to transact and (iv) willing to transact.

SFAS 157 requires the use of valuation techniques that are consistent with the market approach, the income approach and/or the cost
approach. The market approach uses prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions involving identical or
comparable assets and liabilities. The income approach uses valuation techniques to convert future amounts, such as cash flows or
earnings, to a single present amount on a discounted basis. The cost approach is based on the amount that currently would be required
to replace the service
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capacity of an asset (replacement cost). Valuation techniques should be consistently applied. Inputs to valuation techniques refer to
the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability. Inputs may be observable, meaning those that
reflect the  assumptions  market participants  would use in pricing the asset or  liability developed based on the best information
available. In that regard, SFAS 157 established a fair value hierarchy for valuation inputs that gives the highest priority to quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs. The fair value hierarchy is as
follows:
 

 
•  Level 1:  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the reporting entity has the

ability to access at the measurement date.
 

 

•  Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly. These might include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical
or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, inputs other that quoted prices that are observable for the asset
or liability (such as interest rates, prepayment speeds, credit risks, etc.) or inputs that are derived principally from or
corroborated by market data by a correlation or other means.

 

 
•  Level 3: Unobservable inputs for determining fair value of assets and liabilities that reflect an entity’s own assumptions

about the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the assets or liabilities.

A description of the valuation methodologies used for instruments measured at fair value, as well as the general classification of such
instruments pursuant to the valuation hierarchy, is set forth below.

Available for sale securities. Securities classified as available for sale are generally reported at fair value utilizing Level 2 inputs
where the Company obtains fair  value measurements from an independent pricing service which uses matrix pricing, which is a
mathematical  technique widely used in the industry to value debt securities without relying exclusively on quoted prices for  the
specific securities but rather by relying on the securities’ relationship to other benchmark quoted securities (Level 2 inputs). The fair
value measurements consider observable data that may include dealer quotes, market spreads, cash flows and the bonds’ terms and
conditions, among other  things. Securities in Level  1 include other  federal  agency securities. Securities in Level  2 include U.S.
Government agencies, mortgage-backed securities and municipal securities. Securities in Level 3 include trust preferred securities.

Impaired loans.  Impaired loans are reported at the fair  value of the underlying collateral, if repayment is  expected solely from
collateral. Impaired loans are valued using Level 3 inputs.

Mortgage servicing rights. Mortgage servicing rights are reported at fair value utilizing Level 2 inputs. MSRs are valued by a third
party consultant using a proprietary cash flow valuation model.
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Mortgage banking derivative. The fair value of mortgage banking derivatives are based on derivative valuation models using market
data inputs as of the valuation date (Level 2).

Real estate held for sale. Real estate held for sale is determined using Level 3 inputs which include current and prior appraisals and
estimated costs to sell.

The following table summarizes  the  financial  assets  measured at fair  value on a  recurring basis  segregated by the level  of the
valuation inputs within the fair value hierarchy utilized to measure fair value:

Assets and Liabilities Measured on a Recurring Basis
 

March 31, 2009   Level 1 Inputs   Level 2 Inputs   Level 3 Inputs   
Total Fair

Value
   (In Thousands)
Available for sale securities   $ 48  $ 120,214  $ 2,371  $122,633
Mortgage derivative – asset    —     2,097   —     2,097
Mortgage derivative – liability      711     711
 

December 31, 2008   Level 1 Inputs   Level 2 Inputs   Level 3 Inputs   
Total Fair

Value
   (In Thousands)
Available for sale securities   $ 49  $ 113,653  $ 3,873  $117,575
Mortgage derivative – asset    —     1,264   —     1,264
Mortgage derivative – liability      166     166

The table below presents a reconciliation and income classification of gains and losses for all assets measured at fair value on a
recurring basis using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) for the quarter ended March 31, 2009:
 

   

Fair Value Measurements
Using Significant Unobservable

Inputs (Level 3)
(In Thousands)  

Beginning balance, January 1, 2009   $ 3,873 
Total gains or losses (realized/unrealized) Included in

earnings    (672)
Included in other comprehensive income (presented gross of

taxes)    (824)
Purchases, issuances, and settlements    (6)
Transfers in and/or out of Level 3    —   

     

Ending balance, March 31, 2009   $ 2,371 
    

 

The following table summarizes the financial assets measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis segregated by the level of the
valuation inputs within the fair value hierarchy utilized to measure fair value:
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Assets and Liabilities Measured on a Non-Recurring Basis
 

March 31, 2009   Level 1 Inputs   Level 2 Inputs   Level 3 Inputs   
Total Fair

Value
   (In Thousands)
Impaired loans   $ —    $ —    $ 15,235  $15,235
Mortgage servicing rights    —     6,957   —     6,957
Real estate held for sale    —     —     1,206   1,206

December 31, 2008   Level 1 Inputs   Level 2 Inputs   Level 3 Inputs   
Total Fair

Value
   (In Thousands)
Impaired loans   $ —    $ —    $ 14,782  $14,782
Mortgage servicing rights    —     6,611   —     6,611
Real estate held for sale    —     —     90   90

Impaired loans, which are measured for impairment using the fair value of the collateral for collateral dependent loans, had a carrying
amount of $15,235,000, with a valuation allowance of $6,330,000. A provision expense of $767,000 was included in earnings for the
period.

Mortgage servicing rights which are carried at lower of cost or fair value were written down to fair value of $6,957,000, resulting in
a valuation allowance of $2,622,000. A recovery of $169,000 was included in earnings for the period.

Real estate held for sale is determined using Level 3 inputs which include current and prior appraisals and estimated costs to sell.
The change in fair value of real estate held for sale was $289,000 for the three months ended March 31, 2009 which was recorded
directly as an adjustment to current earnings through non-interest expense.

In accordance with FSP FAS 107-1, the following table is a comparative condensed consolidated statement of financial condition
based  on carrying amount  and  estimated  fair  values  of  financial  instruments  as  of  March 31,  2009  and  December 31,  2008.
Accordingly, the aggregate fair value amounts presented do not represent the underlying value of First Defiance Financial Corp.

Much of the information used to arrive at “fair value” is highly subjective and judgmental in nature and therefore the results may not
be precise. Subjective factors include, among other things, estimated cash flows, risk characteristics and interest rates, all of which
are subject to change. With the exception of investment securities, the Company’s financial instruments are not readily marketable and
market prices do not exist.  Since negotiated prices for  the instruments, which are not readily marketable depend greatly on the
motivation of the buyer and seller, the amounts that will actually be realized or paid per settlement or maturity of these instruments
could be significantly different.
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The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents, warehouse and term notes payable and advance payments by borrowers for taxes
and insurance, as a result of their short-term nature, is considered to be equal to fair value.

For investment securities, fair value has been based or current market quotations. If market prices are not available, fair value has
been estimated based upon the quoted price of similar instruments.

The fair value of loans which reprice within 90 days is equal to their carrying amount. For other loans, the estimated fair value is
calculated based on discounted cash flow analysis, using interest rates currently being offered for loans with similar  terms. The
allowance for loan losses is considered to be a reasonable adjustment for credit risk.

SFAS No. 107 requires that the fair value of demand, savings, NOW and certain money market accounts be equal to their carrying
amount. The Company believes that the fair value of these deposits may be greater or less than that prescribed by SFAS No. 107.

The carrying value of Subordinated Debentures and deposits with fixed maturities is estimated based on interest rates currently being
offered on instruments with similar characteristics and maturities. FHLB advances with maturities greater than 90 days are valued
based on discounted cash flow analysis, using interest rates currently being quoted for similar characteristics and maturities. The cost
or value of any call or put options is based on the estimated cost to settle the option at March 31, 2009.
 
   March 31, 2009   December 31, 2008

   
Carrying

Value   
Estimated

Fair Values   
Carrying

Value   
Estimated

Fair Values
   (In Thousands)
Assets:         

Cash and cash equivalents   $ 111,573  $ 111,573  $ 46,152  $ 46,152
Investment securities    123,486   123,520   118,461   118,492
Loans, net, including loans held for sale    1,583,791   1,589,340   1,603,603   1,619,409

                

   1,818,850  $1,824,433   1,768,216  $1,784,053
            

Other assets    191,812     189,184  
            

Total assets   $2,010,662    $1,957,400  
            

Liabilities and stockholders’ equity:         
Deposits   $1,540,235  $1,547,040  $1,469,912  $1,476,135
Advances from Federal Home Loan Bank    146,957   152,205   156,067   162,776
Subordinated debentures    36,083   37,110   36,083   40,282
Short term borrowings and other interest bearing liabilities    38,884   38,884   49,454   49,454
Advance payments by borrowers for taxes and insurance    474   474   652   652

                

   1,762,633  $1,775,713   1,712,168  $1,729,299
            

Other liabilities    17,421     16,073  
            

Total liabilities    1,780,054     1,728,241  
Stockholders’ equity    230,608     229,159  

            

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity   $2,010,662    $1,957,400  
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5. Stock Compensation Plans
First Defiance has established incentive stock option plans for its directors and employees and has reserved 1,727,485 shares of
common stock for issuance under the plans. As of March 31, 2009, 437,550 options (425,550 for employees and 12,000 for directors)
have been granted and remain outstanding at option prices based on the market value of the underlying shares on the date the options
were granted.

The Company can issue incentive stock options and nonqualified stock options under their incentive stock plans. Generally, one-fifth
of the options awarded become exercisable on each of the first five anniversaries of the date of grant. The option period expires ten
years from the date of grant and the exercise price is the market price at the date of grant.

Following is activity under the plans:
 
   Three months ended March 31,
   2009   2008

   
Options

Outstanding  

Weighted
Average

Option Prices  
Options

Outstanding  

Weighted
Average

Option Prices
Options outstanding, beginning of period   439,800  $ 20.58  418,339  $ 20.79
Forfeited or cancelled   (2,250)  23.50  (6,102)  26.19
Exercised   —     —    (37,486)  14.82
Granted   —     —    —     —  

              

Options outstanding, end of period   437,550  $ 20.56  374,751  $ 21.30
   

 
      

 
   

Vested or expected to vest at period end   417,056  $ 20.48   
   

 
      

Exercisable at period end   252,350  $ 19.55   
   

 
      

Proceeds, related tax benefits realized from options exercised and intrinsic value of options exercised were as follows:
 

   Three Months Ended March 31,
         2009              2008      
Cash received from option exercises   $ —    $ 555,355
Tax benefit realized from option exercises    —     54,589
Intrinsic value of options exercised    —     216,407

As of March 31, 2009, there was $483,000 of total unrecognized compensation costs related to nonvested stock options granted under
the Company Stock Option Plans. The cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 2.9 years.

As of March 31, 2009 there were 149,100 shares available for grant under the Company’s stock option plans.
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There were no options granted to employees or directors during the three month periods ended March 31, 2009 or 2008.

6. Acquisitions
On March 14, 2008, First Defiance completed the acquisition of Pavilion, which is headquartered in Adrian, Michigan. Each Pavilion
shareholder  received  1.4209 shares  of First Defiance  common stock and $37.50  in cash for  each share  of Pavilion stock.  In
connection with this transaction, 1,036,861 shares of First Defiance common stock were issued at a value of $27.1 million. The
common shares issued were valued at $26.117 per share representing the average of the closing bid and ask price as of the date of
announcement plus two days prior and two days subsequent to the announcement. The total cost of the transaction, including legal and
investment banking fees, was $55.5 million. The assets and liabilities of Pavilion were recorded on the balance sheet at their fair
value  as  of the  acquisition date.  The  results  of Pavilion’s  operations  have  been included in the  First Defiance’s  consolidated
statement of income from the date of acquisition.

The following tables summarize the estimated fair values of the net assets acquired and the computation of the purchase price and
goodwill related to the Pavilion acquisition.
 

   
Acquisition Date
March 14, 2008

   (In Thousands)
Assets   

Cash and cash equivalents   $ 4,514
Investment securities    9,136
Loans, net of allowance for loan losses    232,499
Premises and equipment    6,992
Federal Home Loan Bank stock    2,036
Goodwill and other intangibles    26,016
Other assets    6,801

    

Total Assets    287,994
Liabilities   

Deposits    209,385
Borrowings    18,403
Other liabilities    4,658

    

Total Liabilities    232,446
    

Net assets acquired   $ 55,548
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Acquisition Date
March 14, 2008  

   (In Thousands)  
Purchase price   $ 55,548 
Pavilion’s carrying value of net assets acquired    (28,228)

     

Excess purchase price over Pavilion’s carrying Value of net assets acquired    27,320 
     

Purchase accounting adjustments   
Portfolio loans    (6,632)
Premises and equipment    2,579 
Mortgage servicing rights    (1,010)
Deposits    1,021 
Deferred tax liabilities    2,648 

     

Total net tangible assets    (1,394)

Core deposit and other intangibles    (6,251)
     

Goodwill   $ 19,765 
    

 

During the  three  months  ended March 31,  2008,  First Defiance  recognized  $750,000  of acquisition related  charges  relating to
retention bonuses, termination of certain contracts, professional services, start-up costs of system conversions, supplies, and other
non-recurring costs associated with the completion of the acquisition and the transition of operations.

7. Dividends on Common Stock
As of March 31, 2009, First Defiance had declared a quarterly cash dividend of $.17 per common share for the first quarter of 2009,
payable on April 24, 2009. As a result of the Company’s participation in the Capital Purchase Program, First Defiance is prohibited,
without prior approval from the U.S. Treasury, from paying a quarterly dividend of more than $0.26 per share until the earlier of
December 5, 2011 or the date the U.S. Treasury’s preferred stock is redeemed or transferred to an unaffiliated third party.

8. Earnings Per Share
Basic earnings per share as disclosed under SFAS No. 128 has been calculated by dividing net income by the weighted average
number of shares of common stock outstanding for the three month periods ended March 31, 2009 and 2008. First Defiance accounts
for the shares issued to its Employee Stock Ownership Plan (“ESOP”) in accordance with Statement of Position 93-6 of the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“AICPA”). As a result, shares controlled by the ESOP are not considered in the weighted
average number of shares of common stock
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outstanding until the shares are committed for allocation to an employee’s individual account. In the calculation of diluted earnings
per share for the three month periods ended March 31, 2009 and 2008, the effect of shares issuable under stock option plans and
unvested shares under the Management Recognition Plan have been accounted for using the Treasury Stock method.

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per common share (in thousands except per share data):
 
   Three months ended March 31,
   2009   2008
Numerator for basic and diluted earnings per common share – net income less dividend for and

accretion of preferred stock   $ 2,907  $ 3,419
Denominator:     

Denominator for basic earnings per common share – weighted
average shares    8,117   7,195
Effect of warrants    —     —  
Effect of employee stock options    —     46

        

Denominator for diluted earnings per common share    8,117   7,241
        

Basic earnings per common share   $ 0.36  $ 0.48
        

Diluted earnings per common share   $ 0.36  $ 0.47
        

Shares under option of 198,501 in the first quarter of 2008 were excluded from the diluted earnings per common share calculation as
they were anti-dilutive. There were no options excluded in the first quarter of 2009.

9. Investment Securities

The following is a summary of available-for-sale and held-to-maturity securities (in thousands):
 

   
Amortized

Cost   

Gross
Unrealized

Gains   

Gross
Unrealized

Losses   Fair Value
At March 31, 2009        
Available-for-Sale Securities:        

U.S. Treasury securities and obligations of U.S. Government corporations
and agencies   $ 18,197  $ 451  $ (5) $ 18,643

Mortgage-backed securities    32,284   1,389   —     33,673
REMICs    3,970   136   —     4,106
Collateralized mortgage obligations    21,316   696   (183)  21,829
Trust preferred stock and preferred stock    7,361   —     (4,942)  2,419
Obligations of state and political subdivisions    41,474   892   (403)  41,963

                

Totals   $124,602  $ 3,564  $ (5,533) $122,633
            

 
   

Held-to-Maturity Securities:        
FHLMC certificates   $ 116  $ 6  $ —    $ 122
FNMA certificates    377   2   (2)  377
GNMA certificates    120   2   —     122
Obligations of state and political subdivisions    240   26   —     266

                

Totals   $ 853  $ 36  $ (2) $ 887
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At December 31, 2008        
Available-for-Sale Securities:        

U.S. Treasury securities and obligations of U.S. Government corporations and
agencies   $ 14,180  $ 505  $ —    $ 14,685

Mortgage-backed securities    34,232   1,137   (3)  35,366
REMICs    4,041   118   —     4,159
Collateralized mortgage obligations    22,196   486   (252)  22,430
Trust preferred stock and preferred stock    8,038   —     (4,116)  3,922
Obligations of state and political subdivisions    36,581   754   (322)  37,013

                

Totals   $119,268  $3,000  $(4,693) $117,575
            

 
   

Held-to-Maturity Securities:        
FHLMC certificates   $ 141  $ 5  $ —    $ 146
FNMA certificates    378   1   (2)  377
GNMA certificates    127   1   —     128
Obligations of state and political subdivisions    240   26   —     266

                

Totals   $ 886  $ 33  $ (2) $ 917
            

 
   

The amortized cost and fair value of securities at March 31, 2009 by contractual maturity are shown below. Expected maturities will
differ  from contractual  maturities  because  borrowers  may have  the  right to  call  or  prepay obligations  with or  without call  or
prepayment penalties. For purposes of the maturity table, mortgage-backed securities (“MBS”), collateralized mortgage obligations
(“CMO”) and REMICs, which are not due at a single maturity date, have not been allocated over the maturity groupings. The MBS,
CMO and REMIC securities may mature earlier than their weighted-average contractual maturities because of principal prepayments.
 
   Available-for-Sale   Held-to-Maturity

   
Amortized

Cost   
Fair

Value   
Amortized

Cost   
Fair

Value
   (In Thousands)
Due in one year or less   $ 1,899  $ 1,928  $ 60  $ 62
Due after one year through five years    17,734   18,261   180   204
Due after five years through ten years    9,853   10,063   —     —  
Due after ten years    37,546   32,773   —     —  
MBS/CMO/REMIC    57,570   59,608   613   621

                

  $124,602  $122,633  $ 853  $887
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Investment securities with a carrying amount of $93.1 million at March 31, 2009 were pledged as collateral  on public deposits,
securities sold under repurchase agreements and FHLB advances and for other purposes required or permitted by law.

As of March 31, 2009, the Company’s investment portfolio consisted of 280 securities, 55 of which were in an unrealized loss
position.

The following table summarizes First Defiance’s securities that were in an unrealized loss position at March 31, 2009:
 
   Duration of Unrealized Loss Position     
   Less than 12 Months   12 Month or Longer   Total  

   
Fair

Value   

Gross
Unrealized

Loss   
Fair

Value   

Gross
Unrealized

Loss   
Fair

Value   
Unrealized

Losses  
   (In Thousands)  
At March 31, 2009           
Available-for-sale securities:           

U.S. treasury securities and obligations of U.S. government
corporations and agencies   $ 2,036  $ (5) $ —    $ —    $ 2,036  $ (5)

Mortgage-backed securities    —     —     —     —     —     —   
Collateralized mortgage obligations and REMICs    —     —     676   (183)  676   (183)
Trust preferred stock and preferred stock    329   (822)  2,090   (4,120)  2,419   (4,942)
Obligations of state and political subdivisions    8,221   (189)  2,587   (214)  10,808   (403)

Held to maturity securities:           
Mortgage-backed securities    88   (2)  68   —     156   (2)

        
 

       
 

       
 

Total temporarily impaired securities   $10,674  $ (1,018) $5,421  $ (4,517) $16,095  $ (5,535)
        

 
       

 
       

 

With the  exception of Trust Preferred Stock,  the  above securities  all  have  fixed interest rates,  and all  securities  have  defined
maturities. Their fair value is sensitive to movements in the market interest rates. First Defiance has the ability and intent to hold these
investments for a time necessary to recover the amortized cost without impacting its liquidity position.

Management evaluates securities for other-than-temporary impairment (“OTTI”) at least on a quarterly basis, and more frequent when
economic  or  market conditions  warrant such an evaluation.  The  investment portfolio  is  evaluated for  OTTI by segregating the
portfolio into two general segments. Investment securities classified as available for sale or held-to-maturity are generally evaluated
for OTTI under SFAS No. 115, Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities, and the newly adopted FSP
SFAS 115-2 and SFAS 124-2. Certain collateralized debt obligations are evaluated for OTTI under EITF 99-20, Recognition of
Interest  Income and Impairment  on Purchased Beneficial  Interests  and Beneficial  Interests  that  Continue  to  be  Held  by  a
Transfer in Securitized Financial Assets.
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When OTTI occurs under either model, the amount of the OTTI recognized in earnings depends on whether an entity intends to sell the
security or more likely than not will be required to sell the security before recovery of its amortized cost basis less any current period
credit loss. If an entity intends to sell or more likely than not will be required to sell the security before recovery of its amortized cost
basis  less  any current period credit loss,  the  OTTI shall  be  recognized in earnings  equal  to  the  entire  difference  between the
investment’s amortized cost basis and its fair value at the balance sheet date. If an entity does not intend to sell the security and it is
not more likely than not that the entity will be required to sell the security before recovery of its amortized cost basis less any current
period loss, the OTTI shall be separated into the amount representing the credit loss and the amount related to all other factors. The
amount of OTTI related to the credit loss is determined based on the present value of cash flows expected to be collected and is
recognized in earnings. The amount of OTTI related to other  factors shall  be recognized in other comprehensive income, net of
applicable taxes. The previous amortized cost basis less the OTTI recognized in earnings shall become the new amortized cost basis
of the investment.

Management’s analysis in the first quarter  of 2009 deemed that the value of seven trust preferred collateralized debt obligations
(“CDOs”) were other-than-temporarily impaired. These seven securities had other-than-temporary impairment losses of $846,000, of
which $672,000 was  recorded as  an expense  and $174,000 was  recorded in other  comprehensive  income.  As  required under
FSP SFAS 115-2 and SFAS 124-2, declines in the fair value of held-to-maturity and available-for-sale securities below their cost
that are deemed to be other than temporary are reflected in earnings as realized losses to the extent the impairment is related to credit
losses.  Four  of these securities  remained classified as  available  for  sale and three of the  securities  were totally written off at
March 31, 2009.

Given the conditions in the debt markets today and the absence of observable transactions in the secondary and new issue markets,
management has  determined:  1)  The  few  observable  transactions  and market quotations  that are  available  are  not reliable  for
purposed of determining fair value at March 31, 2009; 2) An income valuation approach technique (present value technique) that
maximizes the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizes the use of observable inputs will be equally or more representative of
fair value than the market approach valuation used at the prior measurement dates and 3) The Company’s CDOs will be classified
within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy because management determined that significant adjustments were required to determine fair
value at the measurement date.

The Company’s CDO valuations were prepared by an independent third party. Their approach to determining fair value involved
several  steps:  1)  Detailed  credit  and  structural  evaluation of each piece  of collateral  in the  CDO; 2)  Collateral  performance
projections for each piece of collateral in the CDO (default, recovery and prepayment/amortization probabilities) and 3) Discounted
cash flow modeling.

The following table details the seven securities with other-than-temporary impairment, their Moody’s credit rating at March 31, 2009
and the related credit losses recognized in earnings (In Thousands):
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Preferred
Term VI   

TPREF
Funding II  

Alesco
Preferred
Funding   

Alesco
Preferred
Funding
XVIA C   

Trapeza
CDO I   

Alesco
Preferred
Funding

VIII   

Alesco
Preferred

Funding IX   

   Rated B3  Rated Ba3  Rated Ba1  
Rated
Ba2   Rated Ca  Not Rated  Not Rated   Total

Amount of OTTI related to credit loss
at January 1, 2009   $ —    $ —    $ —    $ —    $ 488  $ 428  $ 440  $1,356

Addition    15   1   212   25   369   25   25   672
                                

Amount of OTTI related to credit loss
at March 31, 2009   $ 15  $ 1  $ 212  $ 25  $ 857  $ 453  $ 465  $2,028

                                

Sales and write-downs of available for sale securities were as follows:
 

   
Three Months Ended

March 31,  
       2009          2008     
   (In thousands)  
Proceeds   $ —    $ —   
Gross realized gains    —     —   
Gross realized losses    —     —   
Other-than-temporary impairment charges    (672)  (100)

There were no security sales in first quarter of 2009 and for the same period in 2008. There were no gross gains or losses from calls
of securities available for sale during the first quarter of 2009. Gross gains from calls of securities available for sale during the first
quarter of 2008 were $19,000 and gross losses of $0.
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10. Loans
Loans receivable consist of the following (in $000s):
 

   
March 31,

2009   
December 31,

2008
Real Estate:     

One-to-four family residential   $ 241,119  $ 251,807
Construction    50,534   72,938
Non-residential and multi-family    764,841   755,740

        

   1,056,494   1,080,485

Other Loans:     
Commercial    350,070   356,574
Consumer finance    38,676   41,012
Home equity and improvement    156,668   161,106

        

   545,414   558,692
        

Total real estate and other loans    1,601,908   1,639,177
Deduct:     

Loans in process    14,954   20,892
Net deferred loan origination fees and costs    1,057   1,050
Allowance for loan loss    25,694   24,592

        

Totals   $1,560,203  $1,592,643
        

Changes in the allowance for loan losses were as follows (in $000s):
 

   
Three Months ended

March 31,
   2009   2008
Balance at beginning of period   $24,592  $13,890
Provision for loan losses    2,746   1,058
Reserve acquired from Pavilion    —     4,099
Charge-offs:     

One-to-four family residential real estate    148   57
Non-residential and multi-family real estate    669   464
Commercial    702   —  
Home equity and improvement    130   72
Consumer finance    123   27

        

Total charge-offs    1,772   620
Recoveries    128   129

        

Net charge-offs    1,644   491
        

Ending allowance   $25,694  $18,556
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The following table presents the aggregate amounts of non-performing assets, comprised of non-accrual loans and real estate owned
on the dates indicated:
 

   
March 31,

2009   
December 31,

2008
   (in thousands)
Non-accrual loans   $29,473  $ 28,017
Loans over 90 days past due and still accruing    —     —  
Troubled debt restructuring, still accruing    7,199   6,250

        

Total non-performing loans    36,672  $ 34,267
Real estate owned (REO)    7,839   7,000

        

Total non-performing assets   $44,511  $ 41,267
        

11. Mortgage Banking
Net revenues from the sales and servicing of mortgage loans consisted of the following:
 

   Three Months Ended March 31,  
         2009              2008       
   (in thousands)  
Gain from sale of mortgage loans   $ 2,813  $ 1,143 
Mortgage loans servicing revenue (expense):    

Mortgage loans servicing revenue    689   465 
Amortization of mortgage servicing rights    (957)   (352)
Mortgage servicing rights valuation adjustments    169   (142)

         

   (99)   (29)
         

Net revenue from sale and servicing of mortgage loans   $ 2,714  $ 1,114 
    

 
   

 

The unpaid principal balance of residential mortgage loans serviced for third parties was $1.1 billion for both March 31, 2009 and
March 31, 2008.

Activity for capitalized mortgage servicing rights and the related valuation allowance follows:
 

   
March 31,

2009   
December 31,

2008  
   (in thousands)  
Mortgage servicing assets:    

Balance at beginning of period   $ 9,403  $ 6,089 
Loans sold, servicing retained    1,134   1,450 
Fair value of servicing assets acquired from Pavilion    —     3,130 
Amortization    (957)  (1,266)

         

Carrying value before valuation allowance at end of period    9,580   9,403 
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Valuation allowance:    
Balance at beginning of period    (2,792)  (116)
Impairment recovery (charges)    169   (2,676)

         

Balance at end of period    (2,623)  (2,792)
         

Net carrying value of MSRs at end of period   $ 6,957  $ 6,611 
    

 
   

 

Fair value of MSRs at end of period   $ 6,957  $ 6,611 
    

 
   

 

Amortization of mortgage servicing rights  is  computed based on payments  and payoffs  of the  related mortgage loans  serviced.
Estimates of future amortization expense are not easily estimable.

12. Deposits
A summary of deposit balances is as follows (in thousands):
 

   
March 31,

2009   
December 31,

2008
Non-interest-bearing checking accounts   $ 163,855  $ 176,063
Interest-bearing checking and money market accounts    413,104   374,488
Savings accounts    132,590   132,146
Retail certificates of deposit less than $100,000    608,811   578,244
Retail certificates of deposit greater than $100,000    171,588   170,485
Brokered or national certificates of deposit    50,287   38,486

        

  $1,540,235  $1,469,912
        

13. Borrowings
First Defiance’s  debt,  Federal  Home Loan Bank (FHLB)  advances  and junior  subordinated debentures  owed to unconsolidated
subsidiary trusts are comprised of the following:
 

   
March 31,

2009   
December 31,

2008
   (in thousands)
FHLB Advances:     

Overnight borrowings   $ —    $ 9,100
Single maturity fixed rate advances    35,000   10,000
Single maturity LIBOR based advances    20,000   45,000
Putable advances    64,000   64,000
Strike-rate advances    27,000   27,000
Amortizable mortgage advances    957   967

        

Total   $146,957  $ 156,067
        

Junior subordinated debentures owed to
unconsolidated subsidiary trusts   $ 36,083  $ 36,083

        

The putable advances can be put back to the Company at the option of the FHLB on a quarterly basis. $14.0 million of the putable
advances with a weighted average rate of 2.69% are not yet
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callable by the FHLB. The call dates for these advances range from January 14, 2010 to February 11, 2011 and the maturity dates
range from February 11, 2013 to March 12, 2018. The FHLB has the option to call the remaining $50.0 million of putable advances
with a weighted average rate of 5.01%. The maturity dates of these advances range from September 1, 2010 to January 14, 2015. The
strike-rate advances are putable at the option of the FHLB only when the three month LIBOR rates exceed the agreed upon strike-rate
in the advance contract which ranges from 7.5% to 8.0%. The three month LIBOR rate at March 31, 2009 was 1.19%. The weighted
average rate of the strike-rate advances is 4.18% and the maturity dates range from March 8, 2011 to February 25, 2013.

In March 2007, the Company sponsored an affiliated trust, First Defiance Statutory Trust II (Trust Affiliate II) that issued $15 million
of Guaranteed Capital Trust Securities (Trust Preferred Securities). In connection with this transaction, the Company issued $15.5
million of Junior Subordinated Deferrable Interest Debentures (Subordinated Debentures) to Trust Affiliate II. The Company formed
Trust Affiliate II for the purpose of issuing Trust Preferred Securities to third-party investors and investing the proceeds from the sale
of these capital securities solely in Subordinated Debentures of the Company. The Subordinated Debentures held by Trust Affiliate II
are the sole assets of that trust. Distributions on the Trust Preferred Securities issued by Trust Affiliate II are payable quarterly at a
fixed rate equal  to 6.441% for  the first five years  and a floating interest rate based on three-month LIBOR plus 1.50% points,
repricing quarterly, thereafter.

The Company also sponsored an affiliated trust, First Defiance Statutory Trust I (Trust Affiliate I), that issued $20 million of Trust
Preferred Securities in 2005. In connection with this transaction, the Company issued $20.6 million of Subordinated Debentures to
Trust Affiliate I.  Trust Affiliate  I was formed for  the purpose of issuing Trust Preferred Securities  to third-party investors  and
investing the proceeds from the sale of these capital  securities  solely in Subordinated Debentures  of the  Company. The Junior
Debentures held by Trust Affiliate I are the sole assets of the trust. Distributions on the Trust Preferred Securities issued by Trust
Affiliate I are payable quarterly at a variable rate equal to the three-month LIBOR rate plus 1.38%. The Coupon rate payable on the
Trust Preferred Securities issued by Trust Affiliate I was 2.70% and 3.38% on March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008 respectively.

The Trust Preferred Securities  issued by Trust Affiliates  I and II are subject to mandatory redemption,  in whole  or  part,  upon
repayment of the Subordinated Debentures. The Company has entered into agreements that fully and unconditionally guarantee the
Trust Preferred Securities subject to the terms of the guarantees. The Trust Preferred Securities and Subordinated Debentures issued
by Trust Affiliate I mature on December 15, 2035 but may be redeemed by the issuer  at par  after  October 28, 2010. The Trust
Preferred Securities issued by Trust Affiliate II mature on June 15, 2037, but may be redeemed at the Company’s option at any time
on or after June 15, 2012, or at any time upon certain events.

A summary of all  junior  debentures issued by the Company to affiliates  follows. These amounts represent the par  value of the
obligations owed to these affiliates, including the Company’s equity interest in the trusts. Junior subordinated debentures owed to the
following affiliates were as follows:
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March 31,

2009   
December 31,

2008
First Defiance Statutory Trust I due December 2035   $20,619  $ 20,619
First Defiance Statutory Trust II due June 2037    15,464   15,464

        

Total junior subordinated debentures owed to unconsolidated subsidiary Trusts   $36,083  $ 36,083
        

Interest on both issues of trust preferred securities may be deferred for a period of up to five years at the option of the issuer.

14. Commitments, Guarantees and Contingent Liabilities
Loan commitments are made to accommodate the financial  needs of First Federal’s customers; however, there are no long-term,
fixed-rate loan commitments that result in market risk. Standby letters of credit commit the Company to make payments on behalf of
customers when certain specified future events occur. They primarily are issued to facilitate customers’ trade transactions.

Both arrangements have credit risk, essentially the same as that involved in extending loans to customers, and are subject to the
Company’s  normal  credit  policies.  Collateral  (e.g.,  securities,  receivables,  inventory  and  equipment)  is  obtained  based  on
Management’s credit assessment of the customer.

The Company’s maximum obligation to extend credit for loan commitments (unfunded loans and unused lines of credit) and standby
letters of credit outstanding as of the periods stated below were as follows (in thousands):
 

   March 31, 2009   December 31, 2008
   Fixed Rate   Variable Rate   Fixed Rate   Variable Rate
Commitments to make loans   $ 40,328  $ 52,649  $ 22,710  $ 70,114
Unused lines of credit    40,471   202,611   44,535   211,291
Standby letters of credit    80   17,762   67   18,860

                

Total   $ 80,879  $ 273,022  $ 67,312  $ 300,265
                

Commitments to make loans are generally made for periods of 60 days or less.

In addition to the above commitments, First Defiance had commitments to sell $101.4 million and $72.9 million of loans to Freddie
Mac,  Fannie  Mae,  Federal  Home  Loan Bank of  Cincinnati  or  BB&T Mortgage  at  March 31,  2009  and  December 31,  2008,
respectively.

15. Postretirement Benefits
First Defiance sponsors a defined benefit postretirement plan that is intended to supplement Medicare coverage for certain retirees
who meet minimum age requirements. A description of employees or former employees eligible for coverage is included in Footnote
16 in the financial statements included in First Defiance’s 2008 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Net periodic postretirement benefit costs include the following components for the three month periods ended March 31, 2009 and
2008:
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Three Months Ended

March 31,
   2009   2008
   (In Thousands)
Service cost-benefits attributable to service during the period   $ 15  $ 13
Interest cost on accumulated postretirement benefit obligation    40   37
Net amortization and deferral    14   15

        

Net periodic postretirement benefit cost   $ 69  $ 65
        

16. Income Taxes
The Company’s effective tax rate for the first quarter ended March 31, 2009 was 33.16% compared to 32.59% for the same period in
2008.

The Company and its subsidiaries are subject to U.S. federal income tax as well as income tax in the state of Indiana. The Company is
no longer subject to examination by taxing authorities for the years before 2005.

17. Derivative Financial Instruments
The Company adopted SFAS 161, “Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities – an amendment of FASB
Statement No. 133,” at the beginning of the first quarter of 2009, and has included here the expanded disclosures required by that
statement.

Mortgage  Banking derivatives  used in the  ordinary course  of business  consist of mandatory forward sales  contracts  (“forward
contracts”)  and rate  lock loan commitments.  The  fair  value of the  Company’s  derivative  instruments  is  primarily measured by
obtaining pricing from broker-dealers recognized to be market participants.

The table below provides data about the carrying values of derivative instruments:
 
   March 31, 2009   December 31, 2008
   Assets   (Liabilities)     Assets   (Liabilities)   

   
Carrying

Value   
Carrying

Value   

Derivative
Net Carrying

Value   
Carrying

Value   
Carrying

Value   

Derivative
Net Carrying

Value
   (In Thousands)
Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments           
Mortgage Banking Derivatives   $2,097  $ (711) $ 1,386  $1,264  $ (166) $ 1,098

                        

The table below provides data about the amount of gains and losses recognized in income on derivative instruments not designated as
hedging instruments:
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Gain or (Loss)

Three Months Ended

   
March 31,

2009   
March 31,

2008
   (In Thousands)
Derivatives designated as hedging instruments     
Mortgage Banking Derivatives   $ 288  $ —  

        

 
33

Quarterly Report http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/946647/000119312509106807/...

35 of 49 5/11/2009 2:27 PM



Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

General
First Defiance Financial Corp. (“First Defiance” or “the Company”) is a unitary thrift holding company which conducts business
through its two wholly owned subsidiaries, First Federal Bank of the Midwest (“First Federal”) and First Insurance and Investments,
Inc. (“First Insurance”). First Federal is a federally chartered savings bank that provides financial services through 35 full-service
branches in communities based in northwest Ohio, northeast Indiana, and southeastern Michigan. On March 14, 2008, First Defiance
completed  the  acquisition of  Pavilion Bancorp,  Inc.  (“Pavilion”),  which added  eight  banking centers  in southeast  Michigan,
expanding the Company’s reach to markets adjacent to its existing branch network. First Federal provides a broad range of financial
services  including checking accounts,  savings  accounts,  certificates  of deposit,  real  estate  mortgage  loans,  commercial  loans,
consumer loans, home equity loans and trust services. First Insurance sells a variety of property and casualty, group health and life,
and individual  health and life insurance products and investment and annuity products. Insurance products are sold through First
Insurance’s  offices  in Defiance  and  Bowling Green,  Ohio  while  investment  and  annuity products  are  sold  through registered
investment representatives located at certain First Federal banking center locations.

First Defiance invests  in U.S. Treasury and federal  government agency obligations, obligations of municipal  and other  political
subdivisions,  mortgage-backed  securities  which are  issued  by federal  agencies,  corporate  bonds,  and  collateralized  mortgage
obligations  (“CMOs”)  and  real  estate  mortgage  investment  conduits  (“REMICs”).  Management  determines  the  appropriate
classification of all such securities at the time of purchase in accordance with FASB Statement No. 115, Accounting for Certain
Investments in Debt and Equity Securities.

Securities are classified as held-to-maturity when First Defiance has the positive intent and ability to hold the security to maturity.
Held-to-maturity securities are stated at amortized cost and had a recorded value of $853,000 at March 31, 2009. Securities not
classified as held-to-maturity are classified as available-for-sale, which are stated at fair value and had a recorded value of $122.6
million at March 31, 2009. The available-for-sale portfolio consists of obligations of U.S. Government corporations and agencies
($18.6 million),  certain municipal  obligations ($42.0 million), CMOs and REMICs ($25.9 million),  mortgage backed securities
($33.7 million) and preferred stock ($2.4 million).

In accordance with FSP SFAS 115-2 and SFAS 124-2, declines in the fair value of held-to-maturity and available-for-sale securities
below their cost that are deemed to be other than temporary are reflected in earnings as realized losses to the extent the impairment is
related to credit losses. The amount of the impairment related to other factors is recognized in other comprehensive income.

The profitability of First Defiance is primarily dependent on its net interest income and non-interest income. Net interest income is the
difference between interest income on interest-earning assets,  principally loans  and securities,  and interest expense on interest-
bearing deposits, Federal Home Loan Bank advances, and other borrowings. The Company’s non-interest income is mainly derived
from service fees and other charges, mortgage banking income, and insurance commissions. First Defiance’s earnings also depend on
the provision
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for loan losses and non-interest expenses, such as employee compensation and benefits, occupancy and equipment expense, deposit
insurance premiums, and miscellaneous other expenses, as well as federal income tax expense.

Participation in the U.S. Treasury Capital Purchase Program
On October 3, 2008, Congress passed the Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008 (“EESA”), which creates the Troubled
Asset Relief Program (“TARP”) and provides the U.S. Secretary of the Treasury with broad authority to implement certain actions to
help restore stability and liquidity to U.S. markets. The Capital Purchase Program (“CPP”) was announced by the U.S. Treasury on
October 14, 2008 as part of TARP. Pursuant to the CPP, the U.S. Treasury will purchase up to $250 billion of senior preferred shares
on standardized terms from qualifying financial institutions. The purpose of the CPP is to encourage U.S. financial institutions to build
capital to increase the flow of financing to U.S. businesses and consumers and to support the U.S. economy.

The CPP is  voluntary and requires  a  participating institution to comply with a number  of restrictions  and provisions, including
standards for executive compensation and corporate governance and limitations on share repurchases and the declaration and payment
of dividends on common shares. The standard terms of the CPP require that a participating financial institution limit the payment of
dividends to the most recent quarterly amount prior to October 14, 2008, which is $0.26 per share in the case of First Defiance. This
dividend limitation will remain in effect until such time that the preferred shares are no longer outstanding.

Eligible  financial  institutions  could generally apply to  issue senior  preferred shares  to  the  U.S.  Treasury in aggregate  amounts
between 1% to 3% of the institution’s risk-weighted assets. In the case of First Defiance, an application was approved by the U.S.
Treasury and on December 5, 2008, First Defiance issued $37.0 million of cumulative perpetual preferred shares, with a liquidation
preference of $1,000 per share (“Senior Preferred Shares”). The Senior Preferred Shares constitute Tier 1 capital and rank senior to
First Defiance’s common shares. The Senior Preferred Shares pay cumulative dividends at a rate of 5% per annum for the first five
years and will reset to a rate of 9% per annum after five years.

As part of its participation in the CPP, First Defiance also issued a warrant to the U.S. Treasury to purchase 550,595 common shares
having an exercise price of $10.08 per share. The initial  exercise price for the warrant and the market price for determining the
number of common shares subject to the warrant was determined by reference to the market price of the common shares on the date of
the investment by the U.S. treasury in the Senior Preferred Shares (calculated on a 20-day trailing average). The warrant has a term of
10 years.

Forward-Looking Information
Certain statements  contained in this  quarterly report are not historical  facts,  including but not limited to statements  that can be
identified by the use of forward-looking terminology such as “may”, “will”, “expect”, “anticipate”, or “continue” or the negative
thereof or other variations thereon or comparable terminology are “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of Section 27A of
the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21B of the Securities Act of 1934, as amended. Actual  results could differ
materially from those indicated in such statements due to risks, uncertainties and changes with respect to a variety of market and other
factors.
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Changes in Financial Condition
At March 31, 2009, First Defiance’s total  assets, deposits and stockholders’ equity amounted to $2.01 billion, $1.54 billion and
$230.6 million, respectively, compared to $1.96 billion, $1.47 billion and $229.2 million, respectively, at December 31, 2008.

Net loans receivable (excluding loans held for sale) decreased $32.4 million to $1.56 billion at March 31, 2009 compared to $1.59
billion at December 31, 2008. The decrease in loans receivable between December 31, 2008 and March 31, 2009 included decreases
in commercial loans (down $6.5 million), one-to-four family residential real estate loans (down $10.7 million), home equity and
improvement loans (down $4.4 million), construction loans (down $22.4 million), and consumer loans (down $2.3 million) while
non-residential and multi-family loans increased $9.1 million.

The investment securities portfolio increased $5.0 million to $123.5 million at March 31, 2009 from $118.5 million at December 31,
2008. The increase is the result of $9.3 million of securities being purchased during the first three months of 2009 mostly offset by
$350,000 of securities being matured or called in the period and principal pay downs of $3.0 million in CMOs and mortgage-backed
securities. The unrealized loss in the investment portfolio increased $276,000 to $2.0 million at March 31, 2009 from $1.7 million at
December 31, 2008.

Deposits increased from $1.47 billion at December 31, 2008 to $1.54 billion as of March 31, 2009. Of the $70.3 million increase,
interest-bearing demand  deposits  and  money market  accounts  increased  $38.6  million to  $413.1  million,  retail  time  deposits
increased $31.7 million to $780.4 million, savings accounts increased $444,000 to $132.6 million, and broker/national certificates of
deposit increased $11.8 million to $50.3 million. These increases were slightly offset by a decline in non-interest bearing checking
accounts of $12.2 million to $163.9 million.

The FHLB advances decreased $9.1 million to $147.0 million at March 31, 2009 from $156.1 million at December 31, 2008. The
decrease is attributable to a $9.1 million decrease in overnight advances due in large from the growth in deposits.

Stockholders’ equity increased from $229.2 million at December 31, 2008 to $230.6 million at March 31, 2009. The increase is
primarily the result of recording net income of $3.4 million partially offset by $2.1 million of cash dividends declared on common
stock and $463,000 of accrued dividends on preferred stock.
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Average Balances, Net Interest Income and Yields Earned and Rates Paid
The following table presents for the periods indicated the total dollar amount of interest from average interest-earning assets and the
resultant yields, as well as the interest expense on average interest-bearing liabilities, expressed both in thousands of dollars and
rates, and the net interest margin. The table reports interest income from tax-exempt loans and investments on a tax-equivalent basis.
All average balances are based upon daily balances.
 
   Three Months Ended March 31,  
   2009   2008  

   
Average
Balance   Interest(1)  

Yield/
Rate(2)  

Average
Balance   Interest(1)  

Yield/
Rate(2) 

Interest-earning assets:            
Loans receivable   $1,596,592  $ 23,405  5.95% $1,326,468  $ 22,826  6.92%
Securities    119,314   1,721  5.78   116,717   1,675  5.77 
Interest-earning deposits    44,737   14  0.13   14,087   99  2.83 
FHLB stock and other    21,376   239  4.53   18,610   243  5.25 

                   

Total interest-earning assets    1,782,019   25,379  5.77   1,475,882   24,843  6.77 
Non-interest-earning assets    202,966      169,554    

               

Total assets   $1,984,985     $1,645,436    
               

Interest-bearing liabilities:            
Deposits   $1,348,178  $ 7,183  2.16% $1,111,711  $ 8,670  3.14%
FHLB advances and other    147,091   1,319  3.64   146,520   1,655  4.54 
Notes payable    39,532   157  1.61   25,958   194  3.01 
Subordinated debentures    36,251   426  4.77   36,281   529  5.86 

                   

Total interest-bearing liabilities    1,571,052   9,085  2.35   1,320,470   11,048  3.37 
Non-interest bearing deposits    165,881   —      124,643   —    

                   

Total including non-interest bearing demand deposits    1,736,933   9,085  2.12   1,445,113   11,048  3.07 
Other non-interest-bearing liabilities    17,953      28,630    

               

Total liabilities    1,754,886      1,473,743    
Stockholders’ equity    230,099      171,693    

               

Total liabilities and stock- holders’ equity   $1,984,985     $1,645,436    
               

Net interest income; interest rate spread     $ 16,294  3.42%   $ 13,795  3.40%
         

 
        

 

Net interest margin (3)       3.71%     3.76%
       

 
      

 

Average interest-earning assets to average interest-bearing
liabilities       113%     112%

       
 

      
  

(1) Interest on certain tax-exempt loans and securities is not taxable for Federal  income tax purposes. In order to compare the
tax-exempt yields on these assets to taxable yields, the interest earned on these assets is adjusted to a pre-tax equivalent amount
based on the marginal corporate federal income tax rate of 35%.

(2) Annualized
(3) Net interest margin is net interest income divided by average interest-earning assets.
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Results of Operations

Three Months Ended March 31, 2009 and 2008
On a consolidated basis, First Defiance’s net income for the quarter ended March 31, 2009 was $3.41 million compared to income of
$3.42 million for the comparable period in 2008. Net income applicable to common shares was $2.91 million for the first quarter of
2009. On a per share basis, basic and diluted earnings per common share for the three months ended March 31, 2009 were both
$0.36, compared to basic and diluted earnings per common share of $0.48 and $0.47, respectively, for the quarter ended March 31,
2008.

Net Interest Income.
The Company’s net interest income is determined by its interest rate spread (i.e. the difference between the yields on its interest-
earning assets and the rates paid on its interest-bearing liabilities) and the relative amounts of interest-earning assets and interest-
bearing liabilities. Net interest income is the Company’s largest source of revenue, representing 70.2% of total revenue during the
first quarter of 2009. Net interest margin is the ratio of taxable-equivalent net interest income to average earning assets for the period.
The level of interest rates and the volume and mix of earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities impact net interest income and net
interest margin.

The Federal  Reserve Board influences the general  market rates of interest, including the deposit and loan rates offered by many
financial institutions. The federal funds rate, which is the cost of immediately overnight funds and established by the Federal Reserve
Board’s Open Market Committee, began 2008 at 4.25% and decreased 200 basis points in the first quarter, 25 basis points in the
second quarter and 175 basis points in the fourth quarter to end the year at 0.25%. During the first quarter of 2009, the federal funds
rate did not change ending the quarter at 0.25%. The federal funds rate drives the Company’s prime rate, which is used to price a
substantial  balance  of loans  in the  commercial  and home equity portfolios.  The  prime  interest rate  began 2008 at 7.25%  and
decreased 200 basis points in the first quarter, 25 basis points in the second quarter and 175 basis points in the fourth quarter to end
the year at 3.25%. During the first quarter of 2009, the prime interest rate did not change ending the quarter at 3.25%. First Defiance
effectively managed the impact of the change in the prime rate by reducing its deposit rates and by changing the mix of its interest-
bearing liabilities.

Net interest income was $16.0 million for the first quarter of 2009 compared to $13.6 million in the first quarter of 2008. For the first
quarter of 2009, total interest income was $25.1 million, a $483,000 increase over the first quarter of 2008. The 2008 results only
included seventeen days of the Pavilion acquisition as this acquisition closed on March 14, 2008.

Interest expense was $9.1 million for the first quarter of 2009 compared to $11.0 million in the first quarter of 2008. The majority of
the decrease in interest expense occurred in interest-bearing deposits, where despite average balances increasing $236.5 million to
$1.35 billion for the first quarter of 2009, the cost of that funding decreased 0.98% between the 2008 and 2009 first quarters, to
2.16% from 3.14%. The decrease in interest expense was also impacted by the aforementioned closing of the Pavilion acquisition.
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Net interest margin for the quarter ended March 31, 2009 was 3.71%, a 0.05% decline from the 2008 first quarter margin of 3.76%.
The Company’s interest rate spread improved to 3.42% in the 2009 first quarter compared to 3.40% in the same 2008 quarterly
period. The net interest spread, as well as the net interest margin, will be impacted by future changes in short-term and long-term
interest rate levels, as well as the impact from the competitive environment.

Provision for Loan Losses.
The provision for loan losses is determined by management as the amount to be added to the allowance for loan losses after net
charge-offs have been deducted to bring the allowance to a level  which, in management’s  best estimate, is  necessary to absorb
probable credit losses within the existing loan portfolio. The provision for loan losses was $2.7 million in the first quarter of 2009
compared to $1.1 million for the first quarter of 2008. The period over period increase was primarily due to the deterioration of a
number  of large credits  in the commercial  portfolio as  well  as  increases in reserves  on loans  with existing reserves  based on
declining collateral values. Charge-offs for the first quarter of 2009 were $1.8 million and recoveries of previously charged off loans
totaled $128,000 for net charge-offs of $1.6 million. By comparison, $620,000 of charge-offs were recorded in the 2008 first quarter
and  $129,000  of recoveries  were  realized for  net charge-offs  of $491,000.  As  a  percentage  of average  loans,  annualized  net
charge-offs were 0.41% for the first quarter of 2009 compared to 0.15% in the same period in 2008.

Non-performing assets,  which include non-accrual  loans,  accruing restructured loans  and real  estate  owned, increased to $44.5
million at March 31, 2009 from $17.7 million at March 31, 2008 and from $41.3 million at December 31, 2008. Non-performing
assets and asset quality ratios for First Defiance were as follows at March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008:
 

   
March 31,

2009   
December 31,

2008  
   (in thousands)  
Non-accrual loans   $29,473  $ 28,017 
Restructured loans, accruing    7,199   6,250 

         

Total non-performing loans   $36,672  $ 34,267 
Real estate owned (REO)    7,839   7,000 

         

Total non-performing assets   $44,511  $ 41,267 
    

 
   

 

Allowance for loans losses as a percentage of total loans    1.62%  1.52%
Allowance for loan losses as a percentage of non-performing assets    57.73%  59.59%
Allowance for loan losses as a percentage of non-performing loans    70.06%  71.77%
Total non-performing assets as a percentage of total assets    2.21%  2.11%
Total non-performing loans as a percentage of total loans    2.28%  2.10%

Of the  $29.5 million in non-accrual  loans,  $6.3 million were  1-4 family residential  loans,  $22.5 million were  commercial  or
commercial real estate loans and $0.7 million were home equity or consumer loans.
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First  Federal  Bank’s  Asset  Review  Committee  meets  monthly to  review  the  status  of  work-out  strategies  for  all  criticized
relationships, which include all non-accrual loans. Based on such factors as anticipated collateral values in liquidation scenarios,
cash flow projections, assessment of net worth of guarantors and all other factors which may mitigate risk of loss, the Asset Review
Committee makes recommendations regarding required allowances and proposed charge-offs which are approved by the Senior Loan
Committee (in the case of charge-offs) or the Loan Loss Reserve Committee (in the case of specific allowances). At March 31, 2009
the specific allowance for loan losses recorded against the $22.5 million of non-accrual commercial and commercial real estate loans
totaled $5.54 million. In management’s opinion, the allowance for  loan losses is  appropriate. The allowance for  loan losses at
March 31, 2009 was $25.7 million compared to $24.6 million at December 31, 2008.

Non-Interest Income.
Total non-interest income increased to $6.8 million in the first quarter of 2009, compared with $6.0 million in the same period in
2008. Non-interest income was impacted by the Pavilion results which were included in the last 17 of the 91 day quarter in 2008.

Service Fees. Service fees and other charges increased by $463,000 or 17.6% in the 2009 first quarter compared to the same period
in 2008. The increase was primarily related to fees earned on debit cards and NSF’s mainly due to the aforementioned Pavilion
acquisition only impacting 17 days of the first quarter of 2008.

First Defiance’s overdraft privilege program generally provides for the automatic payment of modest overdraft limits on all accounts
deemed to be in good standing when the account is accessed using paper-based check processing, a teller withdrawal, a point-of-sale
terminal, an ACH transaction, or an ATM. To be in good standing, an account must be brought to a positive balance within a 30-day
period. Overdraft limits are established for all customers without discrimination using a risk assessment approach for each account
classification.  The  approach includes  a  systematic  review  and  evaluation of the  normal  deposit  flows  made  to  each account
classification to establish reasonable and prudent negative balance limits that would be routinely repaid by normal, expected and
reoccurring deposits. The risk assessment by portfolio approach assumes a minimal degree of undetermined credit risk associated
with unidentified individual  accounts  that are overdrawn for  30 or  more days. Accounts  overdrawn for  more than 60 days are
automatically charged off. Fees are charged as a one-time fee per occurrence and the fee charged for an item that is paid is equal to
the fee charged for a non-sufficient fund item that is returned.

Overdrawn balances, net of allowance for losses, are reflected as loans on First Defiance’s balance sheet. The fees charged for this
service are established based both on the return of processing costs plus a profit, and on the level of fees charged by competitors in
the Company’s  market area  for  similar  services.  These fees  are  considered to  be compensation for  providing a  service  to the
customer  and therefore  are  deemed to  be  non-interest income rather  than interest income.  Fee  income related  to  the  overdraft
privilege product, net of adjustments to the allowance for uncollectible overdrafts, was $1.9 million for the quarter ended March 31,
2009 compared to $1.7 million for the same period of 2008.
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Mortgage Banking Activity. Total revenue from the sale and servicing of mortgage loans increased $1.6 million to $2.7 million for
the first quarter of 2009 compared to $1.1 million for the same period of 2008. Gains realized from the sale of mortgage loans more
than doubled in the first quarter  of 2009 to $2.8 million from $1.1 million in the first quarter of 2008. Mortgage loan servicing
revenue increased by $224,000 or 48.2% in the first quarter of 2009 compared to the first quarter of 2008. The increases in gains and
servicing revenue were partially offset by increases of $605,000 for the amortization of mortgage servicing rights. The Company had
a positive valuation adjustment of $169,000 in the first quarter of 2009 compared to a write-down of $142,000 in the first quarter of
2008.  The  mortgage  servicing rights  valuation is  a  reflection of the  slight increase  in the  fair  value  of certain sectors  of the
Company’s portfolio of mortgage servicing rights. The interest rate environment that gives rise to increased mortgage origination
activity also typically causes increases in mortgage servicing rights amortization and impairment, creating a natural  hedge in the
mortgage banking line of business.

Loss on Sale or Write-Down of Securities. Non-interest income also includes investment securities gains or losses. In the first
quarter  of 2009, First Defiance recognized other-than-temporary impairment (“OTTI”)  charges of $672,000 for  certain impaired
investment securities, where in management’s opinion, the value of the investment will not be recovered. The OTTI charge related to
seven Trust  Preferred  Collateralized  Debt  Obligation  (“CDOs”)  investments,  including charges  of  $418,600  on  three  CDO
investments which resulted in the total write-off of those investments that had an original cost of $2.0 million. The remaining OTTI
charges  of $253,400 were  recorded on four  CDOs with a  remaining book value  of $2.4 million.  In the  first quarter  of 2008,
management recorded a $100,000 OTTI charge on its investment in the equity notes of two CDOs that have since been were written
off and $19,000 in gains from the calls of several securities in the first quarter of 2008. OTTI was determined as a result of additional
defaults and deferrals during the period.

Insurance and Investment Sales Commission. Insurance and investment sales commission income decreased $413,000, to $1.5
million in the first quarter of 2009, from $1.9 million during the first quarter of 2008. First Insurance typically recognizes contingent
revenues in the first quarter. These revenues are bonuses paid by insurance carriers when the Company achieves certain loss ratios
and growth targets. In the first quarter of 2009, First Insurance earned $431,000 of contingent income compared to $784,000 in the
same period of 2008.

Non-Interest Expense.
Non-interest expense increased to $15.0 million for the first quarter of 2009 compared to $13.5 million for the same period in 2008.
The 2008 first quarter amount includes $750,000 of non-recurring acquisition related charges.

Compensation and Benefits. Compensation and benefits increased to $7.4 million for the quarter ended March 31, 2009 from $7.1
million for the same period in 2008. The increase is mainly attributable to having a full quarter of expenses compared to the 17
post-acquisition days of operating the former Pavilion offices.

Occupancy. Occupancy costs increased $448,000 in the first quarter of 2009 primarily due to the additional expenses related to the
Pavilion acquisition.  Such expense  increases  were  office  building repairs  and  maintenance,  janitorial,  real-estate  taxes,  utility
expenses and depreciation expense.
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FDIC insurance premium. FDIC insurance expense increased to $567,000 in the first quarter of 2009 from $35,000 in the same
period of 2008. This was the result of the FDIC rate increase in 2009 coupled with the one-time assessment credit, which began in
2007, that offset all of the FDIC quarterly multiplier expense in the first quarter of 2008.

Other Non-Interest Expenses. Other non-interest expenses (including state franchise tax, data processing, amortization of intangibles
and other) increased by $1.0 million to $4.9 million for the quarter ended March 31, 2009 from $3.9 million for the same period in
2008. Significant increases between the 2009 and 2008 first quarters include an increase in collection expenses of $516,000 for other
real estate owned and repossessed assets. Amortization of intangibles increased $200,000 due to recording amortization expense of
the core deposit and customer relationship intangible in conjunction with the Pavilion acquisition. There were various other increases
such as telephone, branch courier, insurance, DDA charge-offs that were due in large from a full quarters worth of expenses related to
the Pavilion acquisition. These costs were partially offset by a decrease in office supply expense (down $24,000) and postage (down
$55,000) as a direct result of management’s cost control initiative.

The efficiency ratio for the first quarter of 2009 was 63.09% compared to 67.75% for the first quarter of 2008. If you exclude the
impact of the acquisition related costs, the efficiency ratio for the 2008 first quarter was 64.0%.

Income Taxes.
First Defiance computes federal income tax expense in accordance with FASB Statement No. 109, which resulted in an effective tax
rate of 33.16% for the quarter ended March 31, 2009 compared to 32.59% for the same period in 2008. The effective tax rate is
lower than the Company’s statutory 35% rate because it has approximately $42.0 million invested in municipal securities, and $28.8
million of bank owned life insurance which are both exempt from federal tax.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
As a regulated financial institution, First Federal is required to maintain appropriate levels of “liquid” assets to meet short-term
funding requirements.

First Defiance had $5.0 million of cash used in operating activities during the first three months of 2009. The Company’s cash used in
operating activities resulted from the origination of loans held for sale mostly offset by the proceeds on the sale of loans.

At March 31, 2009, First Defiance had $93.0 million in outstanding loan commitments and loans in process to be funded generally
within the next six months and an additional $260.9 million committed under existing consumer and commercial lines of credit and
standby letters of credit. Also at that date, First Defiance had commitments to sell $101.4 million of loans held-for-sale. Also, the
total amount of certificates of deposit that are scheduled to mature by March 31, 2010 is $420.0 million. First Defiance believes that
it has adequate resources to fund commitments as
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they arise and that it can adjust the rate on savings certificates to retain deposits in changing interest rate environments. If First
Defiance  requires  funds  beyond  its  internal  funding capabilities,  advances  from the  FHLB of  Cincinnati  and  other  financial
institutions are available.

First Federal  is  required to maintain specified amounts  of capital  pursuant to regulations promulgated by the OTS. The capital
standards generally require the maintenance of regulatory capital  sufficient to meet a tangible capital  requirement, a core capital
requirement, and a risk-based capital requirement. The following table sets forth First Federal’s compliance with each of the capital
requirements at March 31, 2009.
 
   Core Capital   Risk-Based Capital  

   
Adequately
Capitalized   

Well
Capitalized   

Adequately
Capitalized   

Well
Capitalized  

Regulatory capital   $205,005  $205,005  $221,159  $221,159 
Minimum required regulatory capital    77,924   97,405   134,318   167,898 

                 

Excess regulatory capital   $127,081  $107,600  $ 86,841  $ 53,261 
    

 
   

 
   

 
   

 

Regulatory capital as a percentage of assets (1)    10.52%  10.52%  13.17%  13.17%
Minimum capital required as a percentage of assets    4.00%  5.00%  8.00%  10.00%

                 

Excess regulatory capital as a percentage of assets    6.52%  5.52%  5.17%  3.17%
    

 
   

 
   

 
   

  
(1) Core  capital  is  computed  as  a  percentage  of adjusted  total  assets  of $1.95  billion.  Risk-based  capital  is  computed  as  a

percentage of total risk-weighted assets of $1.68 billion.

Critical Accounting Policies
First Defiance has established various accounting policies which govern the application of accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States in the preparation of its financial statements. The significant accounting policies of First Defiance are described
in the footnotes to the consolidated financial statements included in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K. Certain accounting
policies involve significant judgments and assumptions by management, which have a material impact on the carrying value of certain
assets and liabilities; management considers such accounting policies to be critical accounting policies. Those policies which are
identified and discussed in detail in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K include the Allowance for Loan Losses, Valuation
of Securities, and the Valuation of Mortgage Servicing Rights. There have been no material changes in assumptions or judgments
relative to those critical policies during the first three months of 2009.
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Item 3. Qualitative and Quantitative Disclosure About Market Risk
As discussed in detail in the 2008 Annual Report on Form 10-K, First Defiance’s ability to maximize net income is dependent on
management’s ability to plan and control net interest income through management of the pricing and mix of assets and liabilities.
Because a large portion of assets and liabilities of First Defiance are monetary in nature, changes in interest rates and monetary or
fiscal policy affect its financial condition and can have significant impact on the net income of the Company. First Defiance does not
use off-balance sheet derivatives to enhance its risk management, nor does it engage in trading activities beyond the sale of mortgage
loans.

First Defiance monitors its exposure to interest rate risk on a monthly basis through simulation analysis which measures the impact
changes in interest rates can have on net income. The simulation technique analyzes the effect of a presumed 100 basis point shift in
interest rates  (which is  consistent with management’s  estimate of the range of potential  interest rate fluctuations)  and takes into
account prepayment speeds on amortizing financial instruments, loan and deposit volumes and rates, non-maturity deposit assumptions
and capital requirements. The results of the simulation indicate that in an environment where interest rates rise or fall 100 basis points
over a 12 month period, using March 31, 2009 amounts as a base case, First Defiance’s net interest income would be impacted by
less than the board mandated guidelines of 10%.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures
Disclosure Controls are procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the Company’s reports filed under
the Exchange Act, such as this report, is recorded, processed, summarized, and reported within the time periods specified in the
SEC’s rules and forms. Disclosure controls are also designed to ensure that such information is accumulated and communicated to
management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding
required disclosure. In designing and evaluating the disclosure controls and procedures, management recognized that any controls and
procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance of achieving the desired
control objectives, as ours are designed to do, and management necessarily was required to apply its judgment in evaluating the
cost-benefit relationship of possible controls and procedures.

An evaluation was carried out under the supervision and with the participation of the Company’s management, including the Chief
Executive Officer and the Chief Financial  Officer, of the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) as of March 31, 2009. Based upon that evaluation, the Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were effective. No
changes occurred in the Company’s internal controls over financial reporting during the quarter ended March 31, 2009 that materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the internal controls over financial reporting.
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FIRST DEFIANCE FINANCIAL CORP.

PART II-OTHER INFORMATION
 
Item 1.   Legal Proceedings

  First Defiance is not engaged in any legal proceedings of a material nature.

Item 1A.  Risk Factors

  
There were no material changes to the risk factors as presented in First Defiance Financial Corp.’s annual report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008.

Item 2.   Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

  

First Defiance did not have any common stock repurchases during the first quarter of 2009, but has 93,124 shares that
may be purchased under a plan announced by the Board of Directors on July 18, 2003. Participation in the Capital
Purchase Program prohibits the Company from repurchasing any of its common shares without the prior approval of the
U.S. Treasury until the earlier of December 5, 2011 or the date the U.S. Treasury’s preferred stock is redeemed or
transferred to an unaffiliated third party.

Item 3.   Defaults upon Senior Securities

  Not applicable.
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Item 4.  Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

  Not applicable.

Item 5.  Other Information

  Not applicable.

Item 6.  Exhibits

  Exhibit 31.1    Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act

  Exhibit 31.2    Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act

  Exhibit 32.1    Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act

  Exhibit 32.2    Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
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FIRST DEFIANCE FINANCIAL CORP.

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed by the
undersigned thereunto duly authorized.
 
   First Defiance Financial Corp. (Registrant)

Date: May 11, 2009   By: /s/ William J. Small
    William J. Small
    Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

Date: May 11, 2009   By: /s/ Donald P. Hileman
    Donald P. Hileman

    
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
Treasurer
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